J\‘ Case 0:24-cr-60080-MD Document 29 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/11/2024 Page 1 of 3

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
FORT LAUDERDALE DIVISION

| o Case No. 24-60080-CR-_DAMIAN
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA J
V.

CRISTINE PETITFRERE,

Defendant.
) N /

FACTUAL PROFFER =

| The United States of Ame'ricaA and the defen_dant, Cri.stine‘ Petitfrqe (herg:i{laﬂgr?
‘fl?tf;fqpfi;%pf”)_.?gree that, were this case to proceed to trial, the United States would prove beyond
a reasor%able d‘oub} j[hé following facts, among others, which occurred in the Southf:m Dlstrlct of
Fl._oridlglar}d'elsgwhere:
Bgtween appr_oximately December 2019 and continuing through approximately Auggsﬂt'
2023, th¢ ’].)efendan.t knowingly and willfully agreed to pgrticipate in, and did participatenzv in,J a
conspirac;/ to commit money laundering, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1956(h). The Defendant’s role in the conspiracy was to supply bank accounts to .r‘eceive pro;éeds
from romaﬁce scams. PETITFRERE then transferred the fraud proceeds-to a co-conspirator
(hereinafter “Co-conspirator 1), in exchange for a fee.
PETITFERE provided bank accounts for romance scam victims to send money to. Her co-
conspirators, who handled the victims, gave the victims PETITFRERE’S bank account and routing
information. Co-conspirator 1 sent PETITFRERE the transaction details for money she would

receive from victims. The victims then sent their money to PETITFRERE, who would forward the
1
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funds to Co-conspirator 1 while keeping a portion for herself.

PETITFRERE received and transmitted funds that she kn_g:w were the proceeds of crirr}ingl
ac;tivi“ty. Banks notified PETITFRERE on multiple occasions that they suspected .fraudulent
activity in her accounts, including transactions from victims and to Co-conspirator. 1, and closed
at least 12 of P.ETIT_FRERE’S accounts. Still, she continued tp_op_en new accountsk to facilitate thg:
trans‘f‘ers. Additionally, PETITFRERE received large sums of money from peopl_e‘_ she dldnot
know. PETITFRERE knowingly lied to banks about her relationship with Co-conspirator llanjcgl
the nature of the funds, at times at the direction of Co-conspirator 1.

For example, on January 11, 2021, PETITFRERE opened a Citibank account ending. in
3372,. on which she was the sole signatory. On April 30, 2021, PETITFRERE’s account ending in
3372 received a $303,500 wire transfer from ‘Victim Company 1, a business owned by vicf;im TE
T.E. beligved he was sending money to benefit his romance iﬁterest “J agkie Turpin.” Tur_bip was
m fact a romance scam persona being controllled by a fraudster.» On May 5, 2021, from:a bank
braqgh located in Miami, FIO{ida, PETITFRERE wired $288,450 to Co-conspirator 1, keeping
$15,050.00 as a fee. When Citibank contacted PETITFRERE about her rece.iving w_ires from
Victim Company 1 and sending wires to Co-conspirator 1, PETITFRERE falsely told the bank
that T.E. was her partner in the business of building houses in Africa, and that Co-conspirator 1
was PETITFRERE’s brother. |

= PETITFRERE regularly engaged in laundering funds which she knew, and had reason to
know, were criminal proceeds. During the conspiracy, PETITFRERE personally laundered at least
$2,716,850.83 of criminal proceeds. In exchange for laundering the funds, PETITFRERE

N

personally received at least approximately $203,815.59 in fees.

The parties agree that these facts, which do not include all the facts known to the United
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States and the Defendant, are sufficient to prove Count 1 of the Indictment. -
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MARKENZY LAPOINTE
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

AMANDA N. LISKAMM
Director ' '

U.S. Department of Justice
Consumer Protection Branch

MATTHEW A. ROBINSON

TRIAL ATTORNEY

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
CONSUMER PROTECTION BRANCH
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LAUREN M. ELENER
TRIAL ATTORNEY

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
CONSUMER PROTECTION BRANCH
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ALLARI DOMINGUEZ
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT

ER’ISTINEﬁETITF RE
DEFENDANT
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